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FEDERAL ROLE IN TRAFFIC SAFETY
(Pursuant to S. Res. 56, 89th Cong.)

MONDAY, MARCH 22, 1985

V.S, SENAaTE,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EXECUTIVE REORGANIZATION
or THE CoMMITTEE 0N GOVERNMENT )PERATIONS,
Washington, D.C.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:45 a.m., in room 1318,
New Senate Office Building, Senator Abraham Ribicoff (chairman},
presiding.

Present : Senators Ribicoeff, Simpson, and Montoya.

Also present : Jerome Sonosky, staff director, and Constance Greess,
chief clerk.

Senator Ripicorr. The Subcommittee on Executive Reorganiza-
tion will begin its hearings on the Federal role in traffic safety.

And I would like to make a short statement.

STATEMENT OF HCRK. ABRAHAM RIBICOFF, U.S. SENATOR FROM
THE STATE OF CONNECTICUT

Senator Rieicorr. Today we begin a long-range series of hearings
on the role of the Federal Government in the field of traffic safety. We
intend to examine and review from top to bottom those agencies—hoth
public and private—Federal, State, and local—which direct and sup-
port the Nation’s traflic safety efforts.

Two main points stand out clearly after an examination of the ex-
isting situation.

VAST EXTENT OF TRAFFIC SAFETY “ESTABLISHMENT"

First, the vast extent of the so-called traffic safety establishment.
It extends from the local police station to community safety councils
to State traffic safety commissions and to the White House itself. In
the Federal Government alone some 16 separate agencies have some
traffic safety responsibility or rele. The key Federal agencies will be
testifying in this opening round of hearings, We will examine the
efficiency, economy and interagency coordination aspects of these
various programs. We will endeavor to establish exactly what the
present Federal role in traffic safety is, how much is expended to sup-

ort it, how it might duplicate and overlap, and how it might be

improved.
1




2 FEDEEAL ROLE IN TRAFFIC SAFETY

CARNAGE CONTINUES DESPITE SAFETY CAMPAIGNS

The second main point is that despite the efforts of the past—despite
magsive safety campaigns both public and private—the awful carnage
on our roads and streets continues and worsens.

There is no doubt that since the invention of the internal combustion
engine we have practiced an unbelievable form of national self-
destruction.

In the past minute 20 accidents have taken place. One-half hour
from now three Americans will be dead who right now are alive.
And for every half hour of this day and the days to follow three more
human beings will lose their lives on our Nation’s roads and streets.

The preliminary 1964 National Safety Council statistics, which try
in hard cold numbers to describe our annual toll of suffering, misery,
and death resulting from our highways, show that we have again set
arecord. Asa result of traffic accidents which occurred in 1964, 47,800
people have already died, and before the records are closed the total
15 expected to exceed 48,000 which is 16 percent more than 1963 fa-
talities which numbered 43,400. What 1s even more significant is
that the deaths per 100 million miles traveled rose from 5.3 in 1962 to
5.0 in 1963 to 5.7 in 1964. If the current increase in the traffic fa-
tality rate continues, deaths will rise to 100,000 a year by 1975.

We are spending more than $1 billion to assure the safety of the three
men who will oceupy the space capsule that goes to the moon. This
is as it should be. Their safety is of prime importance. But one
wonders about a Nation that is willing to expend $1 billion to get three
men to the moon hut is seemingly unwilling to expend even one one-
hundredth of that amount to protect its 190 million citizens from death
or injury on our roads and streets.

Having stated the traffic safety problem, the question becomes, first,
what are we doing about it, and second, what can we do about it?

ROLE OF FEDERAL GOVERNMENT IMPORTANT

I think it is time we took a close look at the role of the Federal Gov-
ernment in this field. The manner in which the Federal Government
is carrying out its responsibility is of vital importance to the overall
national effort to reduce traffic accidents, Tt can lead and give proper
direction—or it can foot-drag and stagnate. We will determine if
the latter now exists and make certain the former becomes a reality.

There has been a lot of talk, for a long period of time. Now is
the time for responsible and positive action nationwide.

Our first witness is our colleague, Senator Gaylord Nelson, of Wis-
consin, T welcome Senator Nelson for his deep and vital interest in
this entire subject, not only as a Senator, but as one of the Nation's
outstanding Governors who had a chance of seeing this problem close
up, and who as a Governor took a leading role to try to protect the
people of Wisconsin. Since Gaylord Nelson has been with the T7.S.
Senate, he has kept his interest 1n this field and has made many con-
structive suggestions. i

We welcome Senator Gaylord Nelson as the first witness before our
committee.
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STATEMENT 0F HON. GAYLORD NELSON, U.S. SENATOR FROM THE
STATE O0F WISCONSIN

Senator Nersow. Mr, Chairman, T will read, if the chairman will
permit, part of my statement, and ask that the balance be included in
the record. T have o matter pending subsequent to this one, and I
know that vou have some distinguished witnesses here appearing be-
fore you today. So it may be helpful if T just read part of this
statement.

Senator Risicorr. Without objection, your entire statement may
appear in the record.

enator NeusoN. I appreciate the opportunity of appearing before
you this morning. I am interested in the subject, as I know many
hundreds of thousands of people across this Nation are. I did not do
anything very effective about the question of highway safety as Gov-
ernor of my State. But the chairman of this commitiee did achieve &
national reputation for his work in highway safety in Connecticut,

BTATISTICS ON TRAFFIC INJURIES AND DEATH

I think most of us are familiar with the statisties.

The awutomobile ranks as one of the four leading causes of death
in the United States. While millions of dollars are spent on cancer
and heart research, two other major killers, we continue to ignhore
these dramatic statistics:

Over 47,800 people were killed on our Nation’s highways last
year.

Approximately 4.8 million people were injured in automobile
accidents last year.
k'lIln the critical age group of 5 to 29, the automobile was the No. 1

11ler.

An American’s chances of escaping injury in a car crash dur-
ing the whole of his lifetime is no better than 50-50, as estimated
by one expert in the January issue of American Trial Lawyers.

Approximately 50 times as many people died in auto accidents
as died in airplane accidents last yvear.

The U.S. Air Force loses more of its men in auto accidents each
year than in aircraft accidents.

The figures are appallinF, yet the slaughter goes on. What is be-
irflig done to protect the millions of Americans whose lives are directly
affected by the automobile?

Progress has been slow, but there is at least some indication of
possible action. The Senator from Connecticut, Mr, Ribicoff, deserves
our congratulations for conducting these hearings. His proposal to
review the Federal Government’s role in accident prevention should
receive universal support. The problems of poor highway construc-
tion, confusing signs and traffic markings, inadequate driver licensing
programs, and mechanical failure of the automobile all deserve at-
tentlon. They certainly contribute to the high death rate on our
highways.

. g
ik A




4 FEDERAL ROLE IN TRAFFIC SAFETY

PROPOSED EXTENSION OF NEW FEDERAL SAFETY STANDARDS

Several weeks ago I introduced a bill which wonld extend the new
Federal safety standards for Government automobiles to all cars
manufactured for, sold, or shipped in interstate commerce. We now
know how to write safety standards for 60,000 publicly owned cars.
The purpose of this measure is to give the benefit of such safety
standards to the public as a whole, _ '

This proposal will establish a number of required safety features.
Among these are collapsible steering wheels, shoulder harness safety
belt anchors, specific types of safety glass, smog-removing exhaust
systems, standardized transmission controls to avoid confusion, and
uniform bumper heights.

These new features have been tested, proven effective, and will be
available in Government-purchased cars by 1967, Installation of these
features will be of great benefit. And there are other steps which
will increase our ability to deal with this problem.

PROPOSAL, FOR DEVELOPMENT OF PROTOTYPE SATETY CAR

A second proposal would authorize and provide funds to the Federal
Government to develop and test a prototype safety car.

Both the Liberty Mutual Insurance Co. and the engineering de-
partment of the University of Minnesota have developed “safety cars”
with encouraging results. Some who have studied such designs con-
tend that the adoption of special safety features could save as many
as 640,000 lives over the next 15 years. I intend to introduce a bill
to authorize safety car research in the near future.

The need for Federal action in this area has been clearly demon-
strated, We have the opportunity, the technological know-how, and
the manpower to eliminate one of the greatest hazards to the motorists
and the public as a whole. % !

As thls committee studies the role of the Federal Government in
traflic safety programs, I hope they will consider consolidating these
responsibilities under one Federal agency and recommending sutficient
authority to act effectively to reduce the unnecessary slaughter on our
highways. If we are to make any progress in traffic safety and acei-
dent prevention, we must have an efficient and well-coordinated
program.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

(The complete prepared statement of Senator Nelson follows:)

ExHIBIT 1
STATEMENT PREPARED BY SENATOR GAYLORD NELSON

Mr. Chairman, today automobile accidents are a major and inereasingly serious
hazard to the puhbliec. The automobile ranks as one of the four leading causes
of death in the United States. While millions of dollars are spent on caneer
and heart research, two other major killers, we continue {0 ignore these dramatic
statistics :

Over 47,8 people were killed on our Nation’s highways last year.
Approximately 4.8 million people were injured in auntomobile accidents
last year.
In the critical age group of 5 to 29, the automobile is the No. 1 killer.
An American’s chances of escaping injury in a car erash during the whole
of his lifetime iz no better than 50-50, as estimated by one expert in the
January issue of American Trial Lawyers.
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Approximately 50 times as many people died in auto accidents as died
in airplane accidents last year,

The T.8. Air Force loses more of its men in auto accidents each year
than in aireraft acecidents.

The figures are appalling, yet the élaughter goes on. What is being done to .

protect the millions of Amerieans whose lives are directly affected by the
automobile?

Progress hag been slow, but there is at last some indication of possible action.
The Benator from Connecticut, Mr. Ribicoff, deserves our congratulations for
conducting these hearings, His proposal to review the Foederal Government's
role in accident preventlon shouid reccive universal support. The problems of
poor highway construction, confusing signs and traffic markings, inadeguate
driver licensing programs, and mechanical failure of the automobile all deserve
attention. They certainly contribute to the high death rate on our highways.
I introduced legislation to protect the eonmsumer from faulty tires by requiring
minimum safety standards and a system of quality grading and labeling.

These approaches to traffic safety problems attempt to get at part of the
problem, They deserve consideration. But there is more to be done. We must
direct our attention to another fundamental nrmtter: the unsafe construction
of cars themselves.

Forty-three percent of the people who die in auto accidents die under survivahle
conditions, according to the estimate of Elmer Paul, of the U.8. Public Health
Service Accident Prevention Burean. Their accidents have many causes, but
their deaths have one; the unsafe nature of the car itself,

This means that almost one-half of our total highway fatality rate is unnec-
essary and could be eliminated by simple reconstruetion of the vehiels,

It is only realistic to acknowledge that as long as the human being is in
control of the vehicle, accidents will oeceur. Our attention must therefore be
focused on reducing injury after the original impact has occurred. This concept
is often referred to as safety during the “second collision’—the collision not
only of the car in the aceident, but of the occupant of the car with the interior
of his own vehiele,

Dr. Jumes Malfetti of the safety project at Columbia University recently
stated: “We design cars and roads and then tell the driver to adapt himself
to them as best he can. We should start the other way around. Let us first find
oul what the driver's capacities are and then build cars and roads to fit them.”

How to achieve safety in the “second collision” is a concept which has been
studied by the experts. Serious research has been going on for over a decade.
There is agreement that the present construction of most ears hampers the
driver’s ability to aveid accidents. This results in the actual causation of acci-
dents. Beyond this, there is a consensus that the construction of cars con-
tributes to unnecessary injuries and deaths after {he original impaect.

The findings of such groups as the erash injury research project at Cornell
University, the Institute of Transportation and Trafic Engineering of the Univer-
sity of California, the University of Minnesota, the University of Michigan
Medical School, Harvard University, Wayne State University, the Ameriean
Association for Automaotive Medicine, and the U.S. Public Health Service are
important contributions to the field of safety research. These expert groups
have shown that:

If cars were built so that protection could be provided for the head alone,
at least one out of five people who are now dying in aute accidents would
ba saved.

If cars were built with seat and shoulder belts which hold people in the
car in an accident, thousands of lives would be saved. If a person is thrown
fron the car, the chance of degth is five times as great.,

If ears were built with only three basie changss, vecupants eould probably
survive any crash up to 35 miles per hour—and statisties show that 87 per-
cent of all accidents occur at impact speed of 35 wmiles per hour or below.
The three basic changes are: shoulder harnesses; doors which will gtay
closed in a crash ; and collapsible steering shafts.

What do these statistics mean in practical language? Simply, that if we take
action now to make cars themselves safer, the frightening number of deaths and
injuries occurring on our highways ean be dramatically reduced.

The need for changes is obvious. But one factor impedes progress in this
area. That factor is the eonviction in Detroit that “safety doesn't sell.” It is
the stylist who reigny supreme in the automobile industry, not the safety and
Chigineering aexperts,
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The slightest mention of safety standards seems to vause panie in the auto-
mobile industry and I can understand their concern about ill-considered regu-
lation. But, there is no intent to propose impractical or unreasonable standards.
The industry will be consnlied at each step of the way. This is 1 matter of great
public concern. The purpose of the proposed legislation is to find a way to
reduce the death toll on the highways.

Last year a very imporiant step toward safety regulation of the automobile
industry was taken when the Congress passed legislation authorizing the draft-
ing of minimum safety standards for federally purchased automobiles.

Several weeks ago I introduced a bill which would extend the new Federal
safety standards for Government automobiles to all cars manufactured for,
‘sold, or shipped in interstate commerce. We now know how to write safe
standards for 60,000 publicly owned cars, The purpose of this measure is te
give the benefit of such vafety standards to the public as a whole.

This proposal will establish a4 number of required safety features. Among
these are: collapsible steering wheels, shoulder harness zafety belt anchers,
specific types of safety glass, smog removing exhaust svstems, standardized
transmigsion controls to aveid confusion, and vniform humper heights.

These new features have bean tested, proven effective, and will be available in
Government-purchased cars by 1967. Installation of these features will be of
great beneflt. And, there are other steps which will increase our ability to
deal with this problem.

A second proposal would authorize and provide funds to the Federal Govern-
ment to develop and test a prototype safety car.

Both the Liherty Mutual Insurance Co., and the engineering department of
the University of Minnesota have developed “safety cars” with encouraging
results. Some who have studied such designs contend that the adoption of
special safely features could save ag many as 640,000 lives over the next 15 years.
I inteud to iutreduce a bill to authorize safety car research in the near future.

The need for Federal action in this areqa has been clearly demonstrated. We
have the opportunity, the technological know-how, and the manpower to eliminate
one of the greatest hazards to the motorist and the public as a whale,

Ag thig commiitee sudies the role of the Federal Government in traffic safety
programs, I hope they will consider consolidating these responsibilities under
one Federal agency and recommending sufficient anthority to act effectively to
reduice the unnecessary slaughter on our highways, If we are to make any
progress in traffic safety and accident prevention, we must have an efficient and
well-coordinated program.

Senator Riercorr. Thank you.
I have one or two questions for you, Senator.

MARKETING OF AUTOMOBILE TIRES

I have your recent statement before the Federal Trade Commission
on the marketing of antomobile tires. It is a very Impressive state-
ment. Without objeciion, I would like to have it mads part of the
record. :

('The statement. follows:)

ExHIBIT 2

REMARKS BY SENATOR (GAYLORD NELSON BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRADE CoMMISSION
ON THE MARKETING OF AUTOMORILE TIRES, JANUARY 13, 1965

Mr. Chairman, I want to thank the Federal Trade Commission for this op-
portunity to present testimony on tire safety. The Federal Trade Commission
is to he commended for conducting this hearing.

In the last year the peed for action in this area has received important recog-
nition from a variety of groups: State and Federal legislators, the industry,
the press, and the private eonsumer. This interest is climaxed today with
these hearings. A consensus has emerged, I think, that some constructive
action must e taken to protect the life and the pocketbook of the consumer.

The rising fatality rate on our highways can no longer be ignored. Just last
week the National Safety Council, in an announcement that is becoming all too
familiar, reported that more pecple had been killed on our highways over the




FEDERAL ROLE IN TRAFFIC SAFETY 7

recent New Year’s weekend than ever before. The 196483 figure of 474 sur-
passes the previous alltime high for a 4-day New Year's weekend of 409 in 1956-57.
This ix o substantial increase and one that ix not confined to holiday weekends.
In December the council reported that «eaths for the first 10 months of 1964
numbered 39,250, an 11-percent increase over the same period in 1963 and an
alltime high. Beyond this, at least 1.4 million people suffered injuries that
disabled them beyond the day of the accident in the first 10 months, The attack
on this problem must be made on a nuwber of fronts. This is one of them.

The correlation between tire failure and traffic accidents has been proven.
Turnpike and thruway studies of emergency road service ealls show that about
20 percent are because of tire trouble. The National Safety Council reports
that in 1962 tire failure accounted for 7 percent of all bighway fatalities. Tor
the same year the couneil alse reported that in their safety check program 7.9
percent of all tires checked were defective.

The cvidence speaks for itself. We know that bald, worn, overloaded, or
shoddily made tires cause accidents. We know that safe tires can save our
lives, Unfortunately, however, we have no standards for judging how safe and
durable a tire is.

The problem is twofold: We do not have accurate information on tire safety
and the consumer has no way to appraise existing hazy and eontradictory in-
formation.

A set of minimum safety standards should be apptied to all tires so that the
consumer will be protected from inadeguate tires and so that he can have
an idea of the gquality and safety features of the product he is buying.

Mr. A. J. White, director of motor vehicle research of New Hampshire, has
done a great deal of research in this area. “It is generally accepted,’” he states,
“that approximately 3 percent of all tires manufactured are substandard and will
fail prematurely, * * * Tire research already hius greatly improved tire life,
safety, and vekicle stability. Enough is known about tire design to improve
almost every tire safety property further.”

Also needed is a system of grading or labeling to guide the consumer in com-
paring one brand with aneother and to clarify the present confusion of tire
nomenclature,

In January 1964 Senator Humphrey’s Subeommittee on Retailing, Distribu-
tion, and Marketing Practices issned a report on the automobile tire industry,
recommending” the introduction of such a system of guality rating in the tire
industry. I quote from this report:

“The currently used complex methods of naming different brands or llnes
of tires is misleading and confusing to the public. The FTC ‘Tire Advertising
Guide’ proscribes misleading terminology in advertisements, yet it does not pro-
vide for an objective standard of quality rating to be applied to all tires. Such
a standard is needed as the average buyer is not equipped to rate the guality of
tires. A system whereby tires are rated nccording to Government standards
of safety, endurance, general guality, and construction, such as is done in the
meat industry, would let the censumer know eXinctly what be is buying. Your
subcommittee recommends that a systemn of quality rating would be in the
interest of safe transportation and should be enacted.”

1 would like to briefly review some of the recent actions taken in this area to
further prove the general and widespread concern over tire gafety. A great deal
of credit must go to the New York State Joint Legislative Committee on Motor
Vehicles and Traffic Safety and its former chairman, Senator Edward Speno.
The legislation prepared by this comtittee and by former Congressman Kenneth
Roberts, of Alabama, in the House has done much in bringing this problem to the
fore. I have also submitted legislation in this area.

Contrary to the popular feeling that there is no public interest in this problem,
Mrs. Esther Peterson, Special Assistant to the President for Consumer Affairs,
informs me that her office daily receives many complaints about faulty tires and
misleading advertising. In a letter to me, Mrs. Peterson said: "The continuing
number of traffic fatalities proves the need for further investigation of tires and
some positive action to protect the consumer from any shoddy tire construction
and deceptive tire advertigzing. * * * The public wants and has a right to know
that what they are buying is safe,” Mr. Chairman, I would like to insert a copy
of Mrs. Peterson’s letter in the record of this hearing,

Further proof of the existence of this problem is evidenced in the response 1
received following the introduction of my safe standards tire bill in the last
session of Congress. In addition to letters from private citizens with personal

i -
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complaints, I received endorsements from purchasing agencies throughout the
country. I would like to quote from several of these letters.

The National Association of Purchasing Agents :

“¥ * % it is very gratifying to know that someone ‘at the top' is interested in
automobile tire standards. This is certainly one of the bigger headaches of the
purchasing agent for a large munieipality such as the city of Houston and we
shall have our eyes upon the progress of this bill.”

The California Association of Public Purchasing Officers ;

“You have our wholehearted support and that of many other purchasing orga-
nizations throughonut the country.”

City Purchasing Agency for Milwaukee, Wis.:

“I heartily applaud your annocunced program to set certain standards on anto-
mobile tires to improve the safety and reduce the appalling death rate on the
highways. * * * The National Institute of Government Purchasing, the Wiscon-
sin Association of Public Purchasers, and this buying agency heartily endorse and
back your program for some adequate standards in the tire industry. * * * With
many confusing terms and claims by the manufacturers of tires, the consamer has
been in a quandary, espectally the public buyers, for whom I am speaking, who
are in ap endless search to get speciflcations covering their tire requirements so
that they can purchase these intelligently and competitively.”

Mr. Chairman, I think I should call attention to one more group which has
been instrumental in this area, the National Tire Dealers & Retreaders Associ-
ation, This organization, a trade group of approximately 3,400 tire dealers, has
worked tirelessly for improvement of tire safety and has continunally reaffirmed
its support of vniferm safety standards for tires. IDr. Warren W. Teigh, NTDRA
marketing consuliant, said recently that “The tire industry spends altogether too
much time jnggling tire names, qualities, and priees. It should wake up, estab-
lish some quality standards, and get away from the eternal higgling and bargain-
ing.” )

In response to varicus pressures exerted on it the industry, through the Rubber
Manufacturers Assoeciation, issmed Iast July & set of minimum tire safety stard-
ards which became effective January 1, 1985, To cuforce these standards the
association has contracted with an independent testing agency to conduct tests
at random on the more than 900 fires which have been certified by the RMA.

I am pleased to see the industry moving forward in this area but at the same
time T am disturbed by the reception these new standards have received. Their

adequacy has been questioned by many experts in the field. v

The National Tire Dealers & Retreaders Association, at its annual confer-
ence in September, passed a resolution acknowledging the RMA standards but
calling them “inadequate to prevent the marketing of automobile tires and
truck tires of undersized outside diameter, low quality. and questicnable
gafefy, * *

In reply to a reqilest from me as to the effectiveness of the new standards,
the Department of Commerce points out that many of the tests included in the
Federal speeifications for tires developed over 10 years ago are not part of the
RMA standards. This raises a number of serious questions. But specifically
it shows that the standards are not adequate beecause they have been formulated
on superficial evidence. The Department maintaing that “an extensive pro-
gram of testing and evaluating would he needed to produce complete and relia-
ble data on the numerous types and quality levels of tires now available to the
public.” I would like to insert this letter in the hearing record.

These are technical questions and it would seem we must rely to a great extent
on the opinions of experts in forming our judgments. And in this case the ex-
perts do not seem to be satisfied.

Howard Freas, Commissioner of the Interstate Commeree Comtuiission, which
is presently engaged in drawing up new tire regnlations for commercial vehicles,
stated the problem well recently: “Safety is a public conecern which must be
accorded a precedence wholly apart from an economic distinction between pri-
vate and for-hire carriers; it eannot be left wholly to self-regulation by the
industry, no matter how enlightened it interest.”

I trust these hearings will provide the basis for drafting sound legislation.
It would seem to me that any useful legislation would at least require minimum
safety and performance standards and a system of grading or labeling.

-
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LACK OF INFORMATION TO THE PUBLIC ON TIRE SAFETY

Senator Risrcorr. What concerns me is the lack of availability of
this type of information to the public. My understanding is that the
Federal Trade Commission has held a series of hearings on tire safety
and has compiled a massive amount of information. To your knowl-
edge, has this information on the safety factors of tires been made
available to the public and to consumers’ groups?

Senator NeLson. The Federal Trade Commission did conduct ex-
tensive hearings. The record, I understand, is to be a matter of public
information. It is open for public inspection. It would be expensive
to print it. I have asked one of the members of my staff to read the
record, which I understand to be approximartely 1,000 pages. 1 am
going to read it myself. A very reliable and distinguished reporter
came into my office about a week ago and said that the statistics
demonstrated in those FTC hearings were shocking. I think that it
ought to be printed and made available for study by the Members of
Congress, and made available for studies by the public. I understand,
without having talked with the Chairman of the Federal Trade Com-
mission, that the printing problem is one of cost,

Senator Rieicorr. Do you think both as a Member of Congress and
as a member of the public that there is any justification for a Federal
agency to develop information, which may affect the lives and safety
of our people, and then not have it made available to the public?
Don’t you think that the Federal Trade Commission should make the
results reudily available to the Congress and the members of the press
and the public as a whole?

Senator NeLson. I think if the report has any value at all, it ought
to be printed and made available for the public and the Members of
the Congress. And as I said, T understand it to be a rather impressive
report'in terms of the statistics submitted on tires. I am going to look
at it, and if it is necessary to make some moves in Congress in order
to get funds for the Federal Trade Commission to be able to print
it, then I think we ought to initiate it in Congress.

Senator Riprcorr. I want to commend you for the work you are
doing in this field. T intend at a later hearing, when the members of
the Federal Trade Commission are before this committee, to find out
why this information, which is of value, should not be made available
to the public.

Senator NensoN. As to the Federal Trade Commission, & member of
my staff who sat in on the hearings and others to whom I have spoken
about it thought that the hearings were very well conducted and very
fruitful, with fine expert testimony from many people all over the
Nation. And therefore, I would be strongly inclined to the view that
we ought to have printed reports of those hearings.

I thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Rinrcorr. Thank you very much, Senator Nelson.

Our next witness is Postmaster General Gronouski.

Wa welcome you here, Mr. Gronouski.

You are responsible for operating probably the largest fleet of auto-
mobiles and trucks in the country. My understanding is that your
Department operates 88,000 motor vehicles.

Postmaster (feneral Growovsri. That is right, sir,

Senator Riercorr. You may proceed.
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STATEMENT OF HON, JOHN A. GRONOUSKI, POSTMASTER GENERAL;
ACCOMPANIED BY RICHARD J, MURPHY, ASSISTANT POSTMAS-
TER GENERAI FOR PERSONNEL; GEORGE C. RIELD, OFFICE OF
RESEARCH AND ENGINEERING; AND EDWARD B. LANDRY, DI-
RECTOR OF SAFETY AND HEALTH

Postmaster General Growvouskr. Thank you Mr. Chairman.

I didn’t bring this group with me to outnumber the committee, as
much as it may look that way. TRather, Mr, Richard Murphy, Assist-
ant Postmaster General for Personnel, directly to my left, Mr. George
Nield of our Office of Research and Engineering, and Mr. Edward
Landry, our Director of Safety, are with me because they are most
intimately involved in our highway safety program, and 1 thought
perhaps you might want to direct some question to the technicians in
our Department. '

Certainly, it is a pleasure for me to have the opportunity to appear
before the committee this morning. As Postmaster General, my pri-
mary responsibility is moving the mail. But I have other responsi-
bilities, too, which cannot be subordinated to efficiency.

As the head of one of the world’s largest civilian work forces, T
have a solemn commitment to the safety and well-being of our nearly
600,000 employees.

And, as the head of an organization which is in closer contact with
the American people than any other agency of Government, I have
a similar commitment to all of our eitizens.

FRAFFIC SAFETY IS OF VITAL CONCERN

Certainly, one area of vital concern to me is that of traffic safety.
As you noted earlier, we operate one of the largest fleets of motor
vehicles in the country. This fleet consists of approximately 88,000
Government, and privately owned vehijcles, driven by 138,000 postal
employees and traveling more than 1.1 billion miles each year.

In addition, we have more than 22,000 star route contract vehicles
draveling another 450 million miles per year.

Further, we estimate that postal employee families own more than
300,000 motor vehicles. These, too, come under the scope of our
concern,

In other words, traffic safety is our business. It is a problem which
cannot be ignored. As President Johnson has said, the staggering
death toll on the highways “is clearly a major national problem. The
rising cost in life and property must be reversed. 1 am convinced that
a significant national effort is called for.” -

MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT PREVENTION PROGRAM IN POST OFFICE
DEPARTMENT '

To meet these responsibilities and challenges, the Post Office De-
partment has a motor vehicle accident prevention program. This
program is supervised by a stafl of professional safety engineers who
plan, develop, and evaluate the Department’s aceident prevention
needs and advise me on required actions.

We have adopted a continning program of safety requirements in
vehicle maintenance,
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We have adopted a stringent qualification and licensing program
for our drivers, administering driving tests, requiring physical
examinations, and exannuning the driving records of all applicants.

For the safety of children who might be playing near our trucks,
we have installed a specially designed mirror to improve front view
vision at bumper level. Some 25.000 city delivery vehicles have been
equipped with these mirrors, and another 15,000 are in the process
of being equipped. In addirion, we have installed backup buzzers
in 15,289 velicles. These are buzzers that warn anyone behind the
vehicle when it starts backing up. As a result, child fatalities in
fiscal year 1964 were reduced 64 percent from the previous year—
from 14 to 5.

We now conduct a special orientation and training program for
drivers of our right-hand-drive trucks.

To stimulate driver-safety awareness and safety competition among
postal units, we have, for the past 10 years, participated in the national
fleet contest. :

In order to encourage suggestions and recommendations from our
employees, we have set up joint labor-management safety and health
committees at more than 550 of our larger post office installations.

For our postal employee families, we provide information on safe
motor vehicle operations throngh off-the-job safety programs, and we
encourage participation in comnunity safety programs.

And, finally, we initiated, in October of 1962, a seat belt program
and proceeded immediately into engineering modifications to install
belts in all of our postal vehicles, with the exception of the right-hand,
sit-stand vehicle which required the development of a speclally de-
signed restraining device suitable to that vehicle. Right now, 37,400
of our vehicles have been equipped with seat belts.

BEAT BELT PROGRAM—CONTRACT WITH GENERAL MOTORS CORP. FOR
RESEARCH

I think perhaps I should expand a little on this seat belt program,
inasmuch as the chairman of this committee has indicated a specific
interest in it.

The installation of these seat belts was based on the best engineering J
information available, but we were not satisfied that this information
was adequate. In other words, we proceeded to provide some measure
of protection for our drivers, even though we knew that further im-
provement could be made. The problem was that there has been very
little research done in the urea of seat belts for trucks, particularly
for trucks equipped with special seats such as we use.

And so, we entered Into a research contract last November with
the General Motors Corp. to test, under impact conditions, the type 1
of belts we had already installed. The results so far show the wisdom '
of that move, for GM’s research people have already uncovered flaws
in several of our belt installations—flaws which are now being o
corrected. 5

I understand the concern of the chairman over our having to pay
for a research project that might well be considered part of the indus-
try’s responsibility. But the fact is that such research had not been
conducted and we felt that the safety of our drivers justified going .

]
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ahead with it ourselves. Undoubtedly we could have waited for indus-
try to get around to it, but I do not lige to think of the lives that might
have been lost in the interim,

A further consideration was the testing of our little mailsters.
Since these are manufactured by small business concerns around ihe
country, it 1s unreasonable to expect General Motors—or any other
automotive firm—to test them for safety factors at their own expense.
And it is significant to note that one of the seat belt flaws uncovered by
GM was in the mailstex.

REDUCTION OF TRBAN MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENTS

These, then, are a few of the steps that we have undertaken in our
overall safety program. As a result, we have been able to reduce our
urban motor vehicle accident rate from 130 accidents per million miles
driven in 1953 to 30 in 1964. This represents a solid accomplishment
and we are prond of it. '

However, we know full well that there is still room for improvement.
I think, on the national level, we should improve physical and mental
driver licensing standards, mtensify our safety research programs
increase our support of driver education programs, encourage wider
exchange of driver records among law enforcement agencies, and
provide for better exchange of highway safety research data. I
might say that we have under study right now a psychological testing
program such as T remember when I was an Air Force Cadet m the
early 1940’s in connection with prospective aircraft pilots. We would
use this test to weed out the relatively sial! proportion of drivers who
tend to have a very high proneness for accidents before they ever get
behind the wheel. We have not completed this study yet.” There is
some concern about using these kinds of psychological tests. T think
they are well worth developing, particularly in an agency such as ours
with 133,000 employees actually driving vehicles, We have not come
to any conclusion on it yet, but we are working on it at this time.

NATION’S FIRST TRAFFIC SAFETY STAMP

I might also add that in terms of the national highway safety picture
we have been very impressed by various organizations around the
country mterested in traffic safety who have asked us to help focus
national attention on the Nation’s traffic safety effort. On September
3, in Baltimore, just before the Labor Day weekend, we will have the
first day of issue ceremony for the issuance of the Nation’s first traffic
safety stamp. Because of the many who are interested in traffic safety
this appears to be a fruitful use of our commemorative stamp progran.

PROPOSAL TO LEASE CARS TO PROVIDE TO RURAL CARRIERS

One other thing that we are doing will depend upon some legisla-
tion this year. We have 31,000 rural carrier routes where the rural .
carrier supplies his own car. In such cases we have no direct control
over the safety features of the cars themselves. And so, we are pro-
posing this year, to introduce bills in the Congress, to convert this
driver-owned car program to a lease program, where the Government
leases the cars and provides them to the rural carriers.

—
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Now, this has implications beyond safety-—especially financial im-
plications. But from the point of safety, let me point out that some-
thing like 5 percent of these 31,000 cars are over 10 years old. In
addition, that about 1,500 to 2,000 of them are in the very small car
category, and one of the safety problems is that rural carriers go off
and on the highway frequently but many lack the power to move back
down the highway as fast as the rest of the traffic.

Senator Riercorr. How do these contracts work with rural inde-
pendent mail carriers? Are they paid on a per mile basis in addition
to salaries?

Postmaster General GRoNoUsgkL. Yes, by statute, the rural carrier
gets 12 cents a mile, or $4.20 a day, whichever is higher, for provid-
ing the automobile and for full maintenance, gas, oil, et cetera. Under
the proposal that we are about to introduce to the Congress, we would
contract out for this fleet, either through the GSA or through private
industry, depending on which comes up with the best offer. We
would provide, among other things, a fleet of cars that has an average
of ¢ years, none of which will be over 3 years old. These cars will -Ee
equipped with all of the safety features that the GSA is plannin
to put into effect 2 years hence, These are the safety features referre
to by Senator Nelson in his testimony.

As T say, there are many implications to this besides safety. DBut
I think it 15 worth mentioning in terms of the correlation that has
been developed between the age and size of the car and the safety
factors involved.
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ExHieiT 3

Post OrrFice DEPARTMENT RURAL CARRIERS: PLAN OF ProPOsSED CAR EQUIPMENT

Proposed Car

To meet the service, safety, and comfort requirements of our rural carriers
a standard size car with this equipment is planned:

Automatic Transmission
Hpater and defroster
Windshield Washers

Variable speed Wipers

Outside left rear view mirror
Positive crank case vent
Snow tires (winter periods}
Seat belts

Poaitive traction differential
Haawy duty brakes

Heavy duty rear axle
rergsncy flasher

Feavy duty front seat

£1 vinyl trim

Heavy duty shock absorbers
Tadded dash

Feld flat rear seat

This car and its equipment meets or exceeds the safety requirement planned
by the General Services Administration insofar as cars with such equipment are
currently in productien, The G.9,8, requirements pertain to the 1967 model
year and the wnly items not now included are dezign changes such as atandard
bumper height.

Of special impcrtance is the provision of heavy duty equipeent, Heavy duty
brakes mean longer breke wear, greater safety, and less servicing. Heavy duty
axles and trapsmissions mean less "down-ting" -- the time in which & vehicle 1s
out of service for repalrs. Fositive traclion differentials will enable the
driver of an ordinary sedan to drive the car cut of a mud or ice situaricn which
otherwise would cause it to become immobile, The purpese behino Lhis special
aguipment is to reduce downetime and L0 keep ihe cars operating at thelr auxlmum
capability, Chart #L highlights the particular items to be included,
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Postmaster General Gronouskr. These are some of the things that
we are doing. And certainly we, as a Department, welcome the focus
that your committee is placing on this full area of traffic safety. We
believe that such a focus and spotlight can help us in our self-improve-
ment efforts.

We are developing some comprehensive material relating to our
safety program which will be available for the record in a few days,
and we will submit this material to your committee.
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EXHIBIT 4

PosT OFFICE DEPARTMENT SAFETY ProGraM: COMPREHENSIVE MATERIAL RELATING
THERETO

I, Highlights

---23% reduction in total fleet frequency rate in past
& years {19.7 down to 15.1)

==-Tha Depatrtment's accident rate has shown an overall
improvement wiile there has heen a mational upuard
ctrend. IHowever, the previcusly excellent rural frequency
rate has shown a 19% inecrease in the past Lwo years
(1,38 up to 1.64)

II. POD Motor Vehicle Experience vs. National Motor Vehicle Experience

==-Deaths:
Natignal - 1964 1963 Change
Ng. Deaths 47,800 43,565 10% increase
Rate 5.7 3.4 5.5 increase
Postal -
o No. Deaths 36 38 37 decrease
k Rate 3.1 1.4 8% decrease

---POD motor vehicle experience vs National Safety Council Fleet
Contest participants, Tostal accident rate close to matching
performance of the better truck fleets:

National fleet average......»...12.74
Post GEfice Department average,.l15.15

TII. POD Motor Vehicle Accidents and Frequency Rates

No, Accidents Frequency _
Year city Ryrgl Gity Rural Comhined
1957 18,111 791 48.7 1.83 27.4
1958 17,586 762 . 43.3 1.56 0.5
1859 17,988 766 40,2 1,51 19.46
1960 19,034 323 39,9 1.55 19.7
1961 19,092 846 38.6 1.50 18,9
1962 13,233 771 .. 36.6 1,38 18.0
1963 16,175 862 i 30.9 1,49 15.5
1964 16,325 992 30.2 1.64 15.1

Footnotes:

4. Accident fregquency rates represent number of accidents per
million miles travelled, Death rates represent numher of
deaths per 100 milllon miles travelled.
b, National death rates from data of Natioral Vital Statistics .
Division and the U, %, Bureau of Fublic "cads (Calendar Year basis).
e, All postal data based upon postal fiscal year statistics

d, Natioual Safety Council data for period V-1-63 to £-30-84

—
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POST OPFICE DEFARTMENT FLEET ] N

I, Vehicles:
Government-owned vehicleg-e-vucucaccan ~47,015
Types -
Right hand drive trucks-.- 14,099
One ton brucks----memav-a 14,878
Mailsters-e-ceocvemcnaoao, 11,379
Ford Courlerg--------aman 2,005
Twe & one-half ton trucks 1,660
Trajlers-cacacceccmmanaaa 1,086
Miscellaneous truckS-«ea= 948
Five ton trucks---=v=wcaa 507
TrTactot8e=asocceccancnana 455
Leased vehicleS--amaccascemcncnancncnnn 9,706
Rural carrier vehiclegsevceewuncacncana ~31,058
Total---uooo oo i e aes 85,781
II. Hiles Travelled:
Totale-meccmrr e it 1,142,931,602
II1. Drivers:
City Carriers«-c-cuccecmeecneiaacsaccnas 76,898
Rural Carrierse---cceccmcemcaracnanaaea 32,951
Special Delivery Messengerse--w-mmv=n-= 4,668
Garage & Shop Personnelesmeweoooaoooooo 7,833
Other (Supervisors, ere,}==-vemaeasaas- 11,1359
Totala oo e oo e e 133,60%

Footnote: Postal fiscal year 1964 data.
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Seat belts
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SEAT BELTS

Backpround Information

bave been recoumended as the most practical means of accomplishing

an immediate reductiom in fatal and serious injuries resulting from motor
vehicle accidents,

Research;

A Cornell University Automotive Crash Injury Research P'roject has,
in the past six years, carvefully studied 20,000 automobile wrecks.
Results showed that you are 60% safer using a2 seat belt in case of
accident and that 5,000 lives could be saved annually if seat belts
were used nationwide. You are 507 less likely to be killed when
not thrown out of a vehicle contrary to some opirions heard,

National Support:

Seat belts are helog endorsed by such national organizations as the
National Safety Council, the American Medical Association, the Federal
Safety Council, the American Society of Safety Engineers, the
Automotive Safety Foundation and the U, 8, Public Health Service,
among others,

Federal Actlon

Post Office

The Secretary of Labor on September 28, 1960 sent to all Agency heads,
with his endorsement, the following recommendation:

"The Federal Safety Council recommends that seat belts meeting
requirements of Federal Specification JJ-B-185 be installed in
accordance with Federal Stundard 119 and be used in 1ll federally-
owned motor vehicles except those vehicles wheve the use of this
safety device is clearly impracticuble or inadvisahle for
demonstrable veasons,™

Department Action:

During February and March 1962, the Post Dffice Department ran »
feasibility study covering six locations wharein 293 seat belts were
installed and used on all types of uestal vehicles during all types

of service. The results showed that seat belts were practical on

2il tvpes of postal vehlcles, with some modifications. The use of

seat belis was found to be practical where movement for any appreciable
distance was involved.

On August 31, 1962, a commitment was made by the Postmaster General
te the Secretary of Commerce, as Chairman of the Interdepartmental
Highway Safety Board, for the equipping of the approximately 44 000
government -owned postal vehicles by the end of F.Y. 1983. A Postal
Belietin notice to implement this progrum was issuced October 11, 1982
covering the installation and use of the seat beit.

With the installation of seat belts om imcreasing numbhers of postal
vehicles, ohbtalning the cooperative use of the belts by outr drivers
will gain importance if the benefits of this safery device are to

be realized by all concerned,
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Postal Employee Organizations' Endorsement and Support:

Employee Organizations' have participated in the develeopment of the
Poat Office Seat Belt Program from it's beginning, Organization re-
presentatives participated In Departmental aand Repional Conferences on
the Feasibility Study and reviewed the recommendations that resulted.
Some quotes are listed below to indicate this support and to aid in
obtaining uae of the belts by our drivers as the belts are inatalled
on postal vehicles.

"Je believe that your program is most sensible and will provide

within a reasonable time this facllity (seat belts), the need of

which has been proven by tests.'....,Rey M. North, Legislative
Representative, National Assoclation of Postmasters,

"Let me hasten to say that I agree with éverything you are attempting

to do and we are encouraging our pecple to cooperate im every pogssible

way, 1 think it is a wonderful step in the right direction for safet

in this ever-increasing operation in post offices but more especially

on the streets.,',....Roy B. Kremers, Secretary-Treasurer, National
Association of lLetter Carriers,

"We have received the proposed issuance on the subject of seat belts

and concur wholeheartedly with its content.'.....Donald N. Ledbetter
Secretary and Editor, National Assocliation of Postal
Supervisors,

“"This office is in rotul agreement with the contents of your memora

@ated September 5, 1962, on the above mentioned (Seat Belts - Motor

Vehicle) subjecc,”, ... Ashby G, Smith, President, National Alliance
of I'astal Employces.

"as you know, I am personally in favor of seat belts, which will
reduce accident Fatalities and serious injuries to our employees.

1 have read this proposal and there is nothing I can add as vou
have covered it completely in your instructions.'..... E. . fifhson,
Secretary and Legislative Director, National Federation
af Post Office Motor Vehicle Employees,
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PCD-GMC RESEARCH CONTRACT
: Contract #RE 10-65, November 10, 1964-Novemwber 10,1965

I. Background:

The application and use of seat belts as an effective restraining
device to reduce injuries to occupants of motor vehicles has been
substantially documented by the Automotive Crash Injury Research
of Cornell University and others, National support and acceptance
for seat belts has been given by the American Medical Associatiom,
the Department of Health, Education and Welfare, the National

s Safety Council and the American Soclety of Safety Engfneers,

I1, Action within Federal Government:

In 1960 increasing Federal agency ackivity in support of the use
of seat belts in government operations resulted in many agencies
taking action to inatall and require the use of seat belts by
goverument drivers.

III. POD Policy:

Early in 1962 the Department ran a seat belt feasibility usage
test at 6 post offices wherein 293 vehicles (all types) were
equipped with seat belts, The results showed that seat helts

were practical for use in pestal operations and on all types

of postal vehicles, with some modifications. The Department's
Policy on seat belt instsllation and use was issued in the Postal
Bulletin of Octoher 11, 1962, All government-owned postal vehicles
wili be equipped with an appropriate restraining device,

IV. Seat Belt lnstallation in Postal Vehicles:

The initial seat belt installations were based on the systems that

had been developed and tested for passenger cars, However, ap-
proximately 957 of the 47¥, 000 postal trucks have pedestal or git-stand
type of seats, There has been alwost no work dors fo develop and

test restraint systews appropriate fo the particular types of seating
used in postal vehicles,

V. Purpose of Research:

it was designed to provide the NDepartment with data to: (a) evaluate
restraint systems presently installed in postai wehicles, (b) to
determine design criteria for restraint systems most applicable to
the Cype of seating used in poscal vehicles, and (c) determine im-
provements in the interior design of the vehicle driver compartment
to minimize injery under collision conditions.

VE. Application:

Interim results of tests have already disclesed 2 d¢lect in the method
of seat belt installation in one type of vehicle, Steps axe already
being taken to cotrrect this problem which would not have been disclesed
except under dynamic impact testing, The evgluations of » specially
designed lap-shoulder strap with inertia reels as an integral part of
the restraint system for use in the Department's sit-stand vehicles
will provide a determination of the effectivenss. of such a system.

The urgency of determining these conditions does not permit us to

walt wntil notmal research work produces such information.
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Fluvst day of issuance for these commemcralive postoge stamps:

will

Nevhorypout, Massachusctls,
pstanlizhed by Cungrers in 7490,

at u cost of 51,000 uand wus maucd by Four offlesrs, four maciners aud bwo

All siamps are ol h-vent denomination,
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INFORMATION service

POST OFFICE DEFARTMENT

Fashingion, L1, C. 20260 STeriing 3-3100 Exi. 500

wdae

.

Postusster Goneral Jolue A, Gronouski today announced time and pluce for

Apponuttox, Civil War Centenanial serles, Appomattox, Vitginia, April 9,
Magna Carta, Jamestown, Virginia, June 15,
Salvation Amy, New York, N.Y., July 2
Hurbert Hoover, West Branch, Iows, August 10,

Traffle Salety, Haltimore, Marylond, Septewler 3.

be wumounced later,

gpprentice seamnen,

Centennlal series that began in 1961 with tiwe Fort Sumter stamp,

The Appomattox commemorative is the [ifth and Einal lo the Civil War

PUELATELIC RELEASE NO, 3

Desipns of these fortheowing stiaps

The Coast Cuutd cowmanmorative posLal cord will be Fivel isaued dagust 4, in
Newburyport 1: che vbicthplace” of tha Coast Culid,

The Livst coktar was bullt and equipped the.c

commenorated in 1962, followed by the Battle of Gettybury In 1963 and the Baitle

of the Wilderness lust year,
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The Magna Carta Btamp will be 1séued in Jamestown,

Virginia, in conjunction

with an observance planned by the Magna Carta Commission of Virginia,

Lord Chief Justice of England, Lord Parker,

750th annlversary of the Creat Charter,

plens to attend,

The stamp marks the

& document that has come to be revered

as the basis for trial by jury, due progess of Law,

foundations of British and Amevicen Law,

petmanent English settlement in fmevica,

habeas corpus and othar

Jamestown is the site of the first

The Salvation Auny Stamp 18 to be first issued in New ¥ork City, natlonal

headquarters of the 100-year old worild-

wide organization, This unique ovganization

operates more then 3,000 welfare organizations, including 31 general hospitals,

70 clinles, 367 hostels for homeless nen and women,

children's humes, 870 day schonls,

38 waternity hospitals, 145

115 camps and 51 residence hotels,

The Herbert floover Comenorative is to be first issued in West Branch,

bl

Both My, and Mrs, loover are buried ab We

Presidentig] Library is there,

thplace of the 3lsL president and comes out on Mis 91sc birchday anniversary,

st Braach aod the lerbert floover

A stemp  wrging Traffie Salety is to have a first day ceremony ‘in Baitimove,

wheve several years aga tlie Safery

on the gtamp campaign,

First CIub of that city put nation-wide emphasisg

The Traffic Safety stamp will point sttention to the

goals of the President's Comuittee for Traffic Safecy,
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POST OPFICE DEPARTMENT MOTOR VEHICLE SAFETY PROGRAM OUTLINE

Policy: Protect life, prevent injuries and death; promote efficient
and economical use of vehlcles; reduce costs due to injuries,
damage to eguipment, and interruptions to operations: teduce
tort claims against the government; and improve public and
employee relations.

Qualification of rostal Drivers: by
---driver physical requirements
-==réview of past driving experience
-=-Toad testing
---igsuance of govermnment operator's permit

Briver Improvement: by
~--initiat orientation training*

---periodic driving experience evalvation For akill up-
grading through remedial training programs*
---accldent review board function to edvcate drivers
on accident prevention techniques
---safe driving educational and technical materials

Awards Programs:
T Safe Driver Award (recognizing individual driver performance)
---National Fleet Contest (to stimulste group competition be-
tween post office fleets)
---Repional Director's Award {to recognize group performance)

Accident Statistics and Anzlysis:
—_-accident reporting at local, regiomal, departmental levels
---serlous accident investijations and reperts
---accident dat. studles for progiram planning, development
and evaluation
Vehicle Safety Requirements:
~--vehlcle desipn improvements through specification review
for integration of safety reguirements

Vehivie Safety Maintenance:
---Pepartment's preventative maintenance program interlaced
with safety features
---driver respensibility for safety check-out {(POD Label 70)
before taking eut vehicle
---National Vehicle Safety-Check Program participstien

Traffic Planning:
--=one factor considered in tay-out of post office building
grounds, access rouds, and parking aress is definite planniog
for safe movement of vehicular traffic.

Driver Safety Training Time: In general only the requirements for the
type and degree of tralning has been specified., The training time to be
determined by the installation. The notable excepticom to this penersl
policy is in the February 13, 1965 Burcau of Operations instruction for
RHD Sit.stand Vehicles., The training time 1ls established as Follows:

2 hours orientation, 2 hours vehicle familfarization, I heurs controlled
driving practice, 2 hours traffic driving, 8 hours miniium on-the- job
training,,..total training time 1% hours.
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POD MOTOR VEHICLE SAFETY PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS

July 1953 - Department Motor Vehicle Accident Committee formed to study and
recommend (1) improvements jin accident reporting, investigating
and claims procesaing, and (2) establish a motor vehicle safaty
program,

Early 1954 - Selection and employment of an experienced safety engineer in
each of the 15 regions,

June-September 1954 - Twenty.five classes held throughout country to train 793
postal employees as driver instructor-examiners, The 40-hour courses
were conducted under diraction of American Automobile Assn, and
Inatitute of Public Safety, Pennsylvania State Coliege,

Haz'lgss - First Post Office participation in National Vehicle Safety-Check
Program in cooperation with Inter-Industry Committee for Traffic
Safety,

July 1955 - All 405,000 postal vehicle operators and 30 local post office fleets
enrolled in National Safety Council's Safe Driver Award program
and National Fleet Contest, respectively. This participation has
grown so that in F.¥, '64, 126,890 drivers and more than 600 fleets
were enrolled.

October 1955 - P.M, 762 issued coverlng complete motor vehicle safety policy
and program provisions., This was first comprehensive POD isguance
setting forth a department-wide motor wehicle accident preventiom
progranm,

December 1955 - The decision to chamge the color of postal vehicles from the
single olive drab color to red, white and blue was priacipally
morivated as a technique to improve the motor vehicle accident ex-
petience. The new color combination provided = higher level of
visability, a grester depree of contrast to the highway surroundings
during daylight hours of operation and & sharp outline at night due
to the red retro-reflective banding of the vehicle. A comparative
study conducted the iast three months of 1955 indicated the red,
white and blue vehicles were involved in 27% less accidents than the
elive drab vehicles,

1956 -« Continued refinement of basic programs previously imitisted, Emlarged
the Department's participation {n national community safety programs
such as "Slow Down and Live" and "Child Safety." Initiated the
compilation of motor vehicle accldent statistics on a Department-wide
basis.

1857 - Initiasted safety training in accident prevention for 450 full and
part time postal safety persomnnel,

1958 - Launched publication of the Postal Gervice Safety Newsletter for
distribution to 35,000 supervisors. This Is the Department's only
exclusive safety educational medin of communication between head-
quarters management and the postal supervisor,

To stimulate improved motor vehicle fleet safet performance on &
regional basis the "Regilonal Director's Award for Superior
Accomplishment in Metor Vehicle Safety" was Indtiated,
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Special emphasis progrem va reduction of Mailster accident
experience initiated.

Goals established for 1960-.61 National Fleet Contest participants
to obtain improved motor vehicle performance.

December 1961 - Seat Belt Feasibility Study initiated to determime practicability

on peatal vehlcles im line with national campaign,

Safety requirements in vehicle deslgn became an sctively increasing
igsue,

ODctober 1962 - Department's seat belt policy issued.

vehicle Modification Orders issued for installation of seat belts

in 25 different models of vehicles having standard type seats;

i,e,, passenper car Lype seats, high and low pedestal type seats, |
ete. Resezrch and development undertaken to design a suitable
restralning device (comblnation lap belt and shoulder strap using

an {nertia reet system) for use In right hand drive git-stand vehicles,

Vehicle Modification Order issued for installation of reflective
dise (Pot Lid) mirrors on 20,000 pestal vehicles to reduce locidence
of child accidents, The imnscallation of these froat view mirrors
plus intensified driver training on the child hazard prablem plus
increased windshield plass area (on later model trucks) has resulted
in significant reduction of fatal child accidents.

Joint Labor-Manazemeat cooperation propram for accident prevention
instituted, R
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CONSIDERATION OF SAFETY REQUIRFMENTS IN VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

The Department's preventative maintenance program provides for a complete
integratfon of safety requirements, Technical maintenance information
identifies care and service of vehicle componants through prescribed
lubrication and preventative maintenmance operations so as to forestall
vehicle defects which could result in an unsafe wehicle,

Scheduled maintenance procedures provide for the specific visual and/or
operating examination of vehicle components. Many of the iteme checked
are those which would be normal to the regular motor vehicle safety
inspections required by a majority of the states,

Each of our postal vehicles are equipped with & POD Label 70, "Safety
Check Before Operating Vehicle." It is the driver's responaibility to
examing all safety ftems before operating the wvehicle and to report any
deficiencies to his supervisor for immediate repair.

In addition all drivers are trained to report any defects occurring te
the vehicle during daily operation for immediate corrective action,

SAFETY CHECK BEFORE OPERATING VEHICLE

VISUAL MANUAL

Check all tires. Check windshield wiper and hom,

Check for body and fender damage. Check steering for excessive play.

Check ender vehicle tor oil, grease or water teaks. Check service and emergency brakes.

Check oil gauge, gas quuge, ammeter and air brake Check all fights including signal devices.
pressure gauge, if so equipped. Check accident report kir.

Check rear view mitrars.
CHECK YOUR DRIVING HABITS

oot 70  REPORT ANY DEFICIENCIES TO YOUR SUPERVISOR BEFORE OPERATING THIS VEHICLE

--From Bureau of Facilities (Mr. Dieman)

U ——
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CONSTDERATION OF SAFETY REQUIREMENTS IN VERICLE UTILIZATION

The entire program of vehicle utilizatjion is interlaced with consider-
atiens for requirements to promote safe use of postal vehicles on the
highways and provide maximum protection for the pestal driver,

The vehicle utilization program has eliminated much duplication and
overlapping of vehicle travel In the same area, thereby reducing totel
vehicle miles required and a corresponding accident exposure, The

reduced travel also helps reduce traffic congestion which contributes
to accidents,

Careful planning of routes of travel for postal vehicle movement
provides the lease hazardous travel to the extent practicable,

Vehicle utilization activity in the area of dochks is reducing congestion
and, therefore, curtailing aceident potential not enly in the immediate
area but in the impact of frustration on the driver which may lead

Eo driving carelessness later,

«-From Bureau of Operations (Mr. Chapin)
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POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT SAFE DRIVER AWARDS

1.
=a=61% of postal drivers receive the Nation's Highest
Award for Professional Safe Driving, spousored by

National Safety Coumcil. The awards range from 1 to 34 years

Postal drivers enrolled n=w=126,890

Postal drivers recaiving awards-ee-es-c--e--- 77,538

Footuote

Data for Postal Fiscal Year 1964
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NATIONAL FLEET COMTEST

--=Annually the Motor Transportation Counferemce of the

National Safety Contest saponsors the NATIONAL FLEET CONTEST.

---During the 1963-64 Contest Year 2,551 flects oparating
305,512 vehicly reported their accident experience for contest

participation,

=== The Post Office Department had 719 individual postal flests
which were entered as conteatants this year and won the

fallowing awarda:

POD 1st Place Awards- ——- [ ]
" 2nd Place Awards- - 9
" 3rd Place Awardg-veea== [ [

" Honorable Mention Awards (Perfect Record)=-ee-37

Certificate of Achlevementge==s-e—e-mne u— 71

31
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.5, POST OFFICE DETARTMENT

1. Primary foncern or Responsibility for Traffic Safety

The Post Office Department's motor vehicle fleet is cne
of the largest in the world, The Department's 85,000 Government-
owned and contract vehicles, driven by more than 137,000 postal
drivers, operate 1n excess of tagmexk one dililon =ik¥¥¥x miles

annually. This gperating exposure

extends throughout the Nation on all types of roadways and under all
kinds of climatic conditions. The vehiele equipment used in thre
postal service exbraces virtually all types of conventionsl design
passenger and track eguipment, as well as special type vehicles, such

as the MAILSTER, designed specifically for postal use.

The Department's concern Iin the area of traffic safety is infiu~
enced by these factors:

(a) Management's interest and responsibility to safeguard the
health and well-being of its employees.

(b) The need to provide for the maximm utilization of wmotor
vehicle equipment through safe operation.

{e) The necessity to control tort claims costs by means of reduc-
ing the frequency of incidents which lead to vehicle sccidents.

{d) The challenge to operate vehicles at the lowest possible cost
through safe driving.

(e) The desirable cbjective of creating and maintaining a good
public image by exemplatory sale driving behavior and by providing
local leadership or support in local community traffic activities.

2. Authority

(&) Public Law 267, 6hth Congress, directs and suthorizes the
heads of Federal agencies " ¥ ¥ * 4o develop, support, and foster
organized safety promotion.”

(v) Public Iaw T66, B3d Congress, provides for the establishment
of procedures to ensure the safe operation of niotor vehleles in Govern- -
ment coperations. )

(c¢) Civil Service Commission's Federal Personnel Manual imple~
menting Pubiic law 766

(@) The Posta. Manual issued by the Post Office Depa&rtment setting
forth the Department's rules ard regu_atuons
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Current Programs

(a} PResearch

{1) Evaluation of spring-type safety device to actuate
air-braked vehicles when alir system is incperative.

{2) Evaluation of several systems of valving for splitting
front from rear wheel brakes.

{3) Seat design studies to minimize fatigue.

(k) Design of an suxiliary removal seat with safety belt
attachment for use by Route Examiners (these auxiliary seats
are for location in cadb of postal vehicles).

(5} Design of combination safety shoulder harness with
modified waist belt incorporating use of inertia reel for
motor vehicle operstors driving sit-stand vehicles.

(6) Human engineering factors in the cab design of the
MATISTER {a special 3-wheel vehicle specifically designed for
postal use),

(7) Exploratory study for the control of child fatalities.
(b} Stendards

{1} Initisl study of factore to Improve driver selection
and licensing.

(2) Specification for front view mirrow. (To provide
close-in view across entire length of front bumper.}

(3} Development of modification specifications for the s %
adaption of standard safety seat belts to various types of A
truck operator seats.

{e) Training

(1) Development of a supervisor's guide for MAILSTER
operator training (handbook and film strip).

(2) Development of a driver's guide for safe FLEET VAN
(a right-hand drive, sit-stand vehicle) operstion {handbook
and film strip).

(3) Preparstion of a driver's handbook.

(a) Program aids

(1) Promction kit for seat belt usage (driver indoctrina-
tion).

(2} Enrollment in the National Fleet Contest sponsored by
the National Safety Council.
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{3) Enrollment in the National Safety Council's Safe
Driver Award Program.

{iL) Issuance of the Safe Driver Magazine (with special
Post Office Department center page copy), Driver letter,
Natioral Safety Council Commercial Vehicle Safety Posters,
and Special Post Office Department Vehicle Safety Posters -
issued monthly.

(5) Periodic compilstion, analysis and dissemination of
motor vehicle accident cause data and accident experience
studies.

4, Results Achieved

() ZReduction in motor vehicle accident rates

Ancident Freguency Rete (1)

Year Urban Fleet Rural, Fleet Combined Fleet
CY 1553 130.0 - -
CY 1554 d0.0 - -
CY 1655 66.0 - -
CY 1556 L8.¢ - -
FY 1957 Lg.7 1.83 22.h
FY 1958 L3.3 1.56 20.5
FY 1559 Lo.2 1.51 19.6
FY 1960 ' 39.9 1.5 19.7
FY 1961 38.6 1.50 18.9
FY 1962 36.6 1.38 18.0

{L¥ote: From 1953 through 1961 rates {number of sccidents per
1,000,000 miles driven) were tased upon ALL eccidents -
involving property derage {regardless of dollar cost)
and/or personal irjury. Sterting ir 1962 the motor
vehicle accident experience was reported in sccordance
with the American Standard Method of Measuring Motor
Vehicle Fleet and Pessenger Accident Experience,

ASA D15.2-1960.

5. Petentizl Contributions —o Traffic Sefety

The Fost Office Department becaunse of 1ts widespread motor wehicle
fleet operations, as well as its researcn and safeiy engineering staffs,
is In & position to centribtute operational krow=-now and research
knowledge which may have direct application to traffic safety problems
encountered by cther fleet ocperators.
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Due to widespread operations of the Postal Service in every State
of the union, postmasters not cnly have the opporturnity to contribute
but frequently accept i{he responsibility to¢ provide leadership in
community traffic safety activities. This is neot orly helpful in the
creation of a favoreble public image for the Postal Service but more
broadly serves to provide tangible indication of Federal interest
and cocpergtion in tralfic safety at the community level. The Ilepart-
ment's active support ané participation since 1958 in the Annusl
National Vehicle Safety Check Program is Iliustrative of this type of
activity. In this program not only are Government-cwned and hired
vehicles safety-checked but the actlive participation of meil heuling
contractors, as well as postal employees {with thelr privetely ocwned
vehicles ), are encouraged to participate. In numerous instances coms
munlity vehicle safety-check programs were organized and operated by
postal personnel.

6, Relationships

{a) Otner Federsl agencies - The Post Office Department partici-
pates with other Federal agencies in the Federal Safety Courcil in
the development of broad motor vehlcle safety activities, and has
edministratively adopted the ICC Safety Regulations as & contrectural
responsibility of mail contract trackers., It elso makes use of the
Naticnel Sriver Register.

(b) State and local government agencies - Cooperative agreements
heve been developed for the purpose of gbtaining driver accident
experience Informetion from official records. The Zepartment alsc
cooperates wita locel traffic esuthorlties in the modificaticn of
treffic laws and ordinances in reletion to postal operations so as to
improve the safety of these coperaticas.

{¢) Erivete groups

{1) Participetion in the National Motor Fleet Supervisor's
Training Courses sponscred by the Institute of Public Safety,
Pennsylvenia State University.

(2) Americen Autcmobile Associstion (Driver Training
Courses ).

{3) Membership and participation in the Motor Transport
Conference of the Naticral Safety Council.

(4} Participation in conferences sponsored by the Pres-
ident's Committee for Traffic Safety; Naticnal Eighway Users
Conference; Internaticonal Association of Chiefs of Police;
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American Assoclation of Motor Vehilcle Administratorsd;
Automotive Safety Foundation; the American Bar
Association Traffic Court Program; and Autc Industries
Highway Hafety Committee, Inec,

(d) Automobile Manufacturers -- Close working
relationship 5 maintained with automcblle manufacturees
and accessories manufacturers design engineers in the
development of safety features for applicatfion to pestal
motor vehicles,
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Postmaster (zeneral Gronousgr. That is about all T have to say. I
would be glad to answer any questions.

Senator Rirrcorr. Thank you, Mr. Postmaster General.

Would you please furnish for the record a report on the traffic ac-
cident clamms against the Post Office Department over the past 5 years?
Postmaster (reneral Gronouvsrr. Yes, sir.
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ExHIBIT 3

Post Office Department
Motor Vehicle Accident Tort Claims Cost

Average Cost

Fiscal Year MNumber of Claims Total Payments Per Claim
1260 8,610 $1,542,714 5179
1961 9,429 - 1,750,219 186
1962 9,383 2,010,000 214
1963 8,924 1,797,000 201
1964 8,699 1,884,000 217
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Senator Risrcorr. I understand that the President has asked each
agency to submit to him recommendations as to how they could improve
their existing safety program. Have you done so?

Postmaster General Growousgr, It is being prepared, and we will
submit it within 90 days.

Senator Risicorr, And after you clear it with the White House,
will you please submit those recommendations to this committee for
the record?

GRANT TO GENERAL MOTORS CORP. FOR RESEARCH

Now, getting back to this $115,000 grant to General Motors, which is
still troublesome to me, As I understand it, in 1963 you asked for bids
from various organizations to do a crash safety study for the Post
Office Department. None of the big four automakers submitted bids;
is that correct?

Mr. NmErn. We received a bid from General Motors. That is the
only one of the four.

Senator Risicorr. In the first go-around ¢

Mr. Niewn. Yes, sir; that was the only 1 of the 4 big motor manu-
facturers that submitted a bid and we received 10 hids, altogether.

Senator Risicorr. It was my understanding that 18 firms indicated
an interest in your invitation to bid. The Big Four were not among
them. At a later date, you sent a letter to the 18 respondents to the
bid invitation and to 7 others who had not responded, including the
General Motors Technical Center at Warren, Mich.; is that correct?

Mr. Nteep. When the bids themselves were submitted, there were 10
bids, and General Motors was among the 10.

Senator Rieicorr. But, originally, neither General Motors nor any
of the major antomakers indicated an interest in this study; is that
correet ?

Mr. NieLp. They did not respond to the advertisement in the Com-
merce Business Daily.

Senator Riercorr. They did not respond to it, but you sent a letter
to them and asked them to respond ; is that correct ?

Mr, N1erp. Yes, sir,

Senator Risicorr. Now, do you know why they didn’t respond?
Why did you not deal with those who responded? Why did you go
back and seek a bid from one of the automakers?

Mr. NieLn. Well, General Motors does have what we consider to
be the finest facility in the world to do this type of work. So, we
were very much interested in receiving a bid from them. It is quite
common for firms that are interested i certain areas to overlook the
advertisement in the Commerce Business Daily. So, in such cases,
we do make available to them the information that we are actually
seaking bids.

Senator Risrcorr. What I am curious about is this: The Federal
Government spends about $140 million a year on civilian and military
motor vehicles; why shouldn’t the automobile manufacturers who get
this business do research on safety for the Government? Why should
the Post Office Department have to pay any automobile manufacturer
$115,000 for a safety study? o )

Mr. Niewp. The type of vehicle that we are considering here is not
in the area where they do a great deal of business with us. In 1964,
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they sold 7.8 percent of the vehicles that we procured. In the 2 pre-
vious vears, they sold no vehicles to the Post Office Department. So,
we are not actually a favored customer in that respect for this type of
vehicle.

Senator Rieicorr. Who gets most of your business? “Which auto.
mobile manufacturer gets most of your business?

Mr. Nierp. Chrysler Corp. gets a very substantial part of it, and
International Harvester also.

SHOULD THE MOTOR VEHICLE INDUSTRY FURNISH SAFETY RESEARCH AS A
MATTER OF COURSE?

Senator Risrcorr. Why shouldn’t the Chrysler Corp. then under-
take to do the safety research on vehicles that they sell you? This
is a large corporation, and it does this large business with you. Why
couldn’t this study be done, as a matter of course, by Chrysler or
International Harvester?

Mr. Murray. Senator, if T could respond partially, I agree a great
deal with your sentiments about this. T think a great deal more
basic research in safety ought to be done by the leading ear manu-
facturers. One problem here is the fact that we have a substantial
number of right-hand-drive vehicles, about 14,000 that we use, which
are fairly peculiar to us. In addition to that we also have a very
high percentage of vehicles with a type of seat arrangement for which
very {ittle research, insofar as seat belts and restraining devices, has
been done, .

So it may be considered not a direct principal concern of these larger
companies to undertake research in this particular limited area. DBut
my personal feeling would very closely coincide with yours—ithat a
lot more basic safety research ought to be done by the automobile
manufacturers themselves. In any event, we feel that we onght to take
independent action in those areas of specific interest to the postal
service.

Senator Rieicorr. Would you say that the automobile manufac-
turers have shirked their responsibility in the safety research field?

Mr. Murpry. I think a lot more could be done by them, from my
point of view. Frankly, Senator, that iz my personal view.

Senator Riercorr. I notice in your prepared statement that you have
added some features to Post Office vehicles. They are very interesting.

WIDER FRONT VIEW VISION AND BACEUFP BUZZER

On the question of special design to improve front-view vision at
bumper level, if it is good enough for the Post Office, why isn't it
good enough for all trucks and automobiles?

Postmaster General Grovousgr. I think it onght to be on all trucks
where there is a lack of adequate close-in front vision.

And also, this backup buzzer 1s a very clever device. The child
hears it and 1s warned if for some reason the driver does not see the
child behind the vehicle.

Senator Risicorr. What is the cost of that front view vision mirror
with buzzer device on the back of 1t¥ What 1s the additional cost to
the trucks?




